HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 14, 2004
1:55 P. M

TAPE HFC 04 — 82, Side A
TAPE HFC 04 - 82, Side B
TAPE HFC 04 - 83, Side A
TAPE HFC 04 - 83, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:55 P. M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Eric Croft

Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative M ke Hawker

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Representative Harry Crawford; Jay Hardenbrook, Staff to

Representative Crawford; Representative John Coghill; Eddy
Jeans, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Depart ment of Educati on and Early Devel opnent ;
Representative Cheryll Heinze; Kelly Hepler, D rector,

Division of Sport Fish, Departnent of Fish and Gane; Rob
Bentz, Deputy Director, Division of Sport Fish, Departnent
of Fish and Gane; Eric Yould, Executive D rector, Al aska
Power Associ ation; Bob Barthol omew, Chief Operating Oficer,
Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, Departnent of Revenue;,;
Caryl MConkie, Tourism Devel opnent, Division of Trade and
Devel opnent, Departnent of Community & Econonmic Devel opnent;
Jim Smth, Superintendent, Galena City Schools; Pete
Ecklund, Staff to Representative WIIlians; Bob Barthol omew,
Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation,
Departnent of Revenue,

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Ral ph Lindquist, Dean of Students, Nenana Living center,
Nenana; Morgan Dunker, Student, Nenana Living Center,

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Nenana;

Afton Brinkman, Student, Nenana Living Center,

Nenana; Don Johnson, ui de, Sol dotna

SUMVARY
HIR 46

HIR 47

HB 425

HB 452

HB 512

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the
State of Alaska relating to the principal of the
Al aska permanent fund; |imting appropriations
fromthe Al aska permanent fund to anpunts equal to
that part of the market value of the fund that
exceeds the principal based on an averaged percent
of the fund market val ue.

HIR 46 was REPORTED out of Commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and with two fiscal
i npact notes.

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the
State of Alaska relating to the principal of the
Al aska permanent fund; |imting appropriations
fromthe Al aska permanent fund to anpbunts equal to
that part of the market value of the fund that
exceeds the principal based on an averaged percent
of the fund rmarket val ue; and permtting
appropriations from the permanent fund only for
costs of admnistering the fund, a program of
di vidend paynents for state residents, and public
educat i on.

HIR 47 was REPORTED out of Commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and with two fiscal
i npact notes.

An Act relating to funding for school districts
operating secondary school boarding prograns, to
funding for school districts from which boarding
students cone, and to i noperative school
districts; and providing for an effective date.

HB 425 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

An Act relating to licensing and regulation of
sport fishing services operators and fishing
gui des; and providing for an effective date.

CSHB 452(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and two fiscal inpact
not es.

An Act est abl i shing t he Hydr ogen Ener gy
Partnership in the Departnent of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent; requiring the comm ssioner
of community and economc developnent to seek

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



public and private funding for the partnership;
providing for the contingent r epeal of an
effective date; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HB 512 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 553 An Act relating to investnents of the Al aska
per manent fund and to the incone of and
appropriations from the Al aska permanent fund and
maki ng conform ng anendnents; relating to the
determ nation of net incone of the nental health
trust fund; and providing for an effective date.

CSHB 553(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and no fiscal inpact
not es.

#hb425
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 425

An Act relating to funding for school districts
operating secondary school boarding prograns, to
funding for school districts from which boarding
students cone, and to inoperative school districts; and
providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHN COGHI LL expl ai ned t hat current
provi sions are expanded under HB 425 allowing a district to
receive a stipend for a student to travel to attend a
secondary boardi ng school that began before January 1, 2004.
He noted that Sitka’s M. Edgecunbe is a boarding school
under a different statute. Galena, Nenana and Bet hel have a
broad range of boarding school options. HB 425 allows
students to choose between a school in their district or a

boar di ng school option. Representative Coghill noted that it
is a change in policy, which the fiscal note reflects. The
bill adds a sunset date of 2009 and protects snaller

districts from being dropped from the critical 10-student
Average Daily Menbership (ADM count if students |eave to go
to boarding school. The boarding schools in Nenana, Bethe
and Galena offer cultural, social and educational changes
and possibilities for students.

Representative Coghill explained that Section 1 requires the
secondary school boarding program to have been operating by
January 1, 2004. Section 2 relates to the student count
being less than the mninmum of ten, and Section 3 is the
repeal er.

Representative Coghill pointed out that Nenana’'s and

Gal ena’ s actual capacities are lower than the figures shown
on the second page of fiscal note Conponent No. 148. The

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Bet hel school students are not all within a single boarding
hone.

He concluded that HB 425 would expand the circunstances
allowing the boarding school to receive a reinbursenent
stipend. Under the bill, a student would not have to pass
the current entrance standards, which require that his hone
district does not include a boarding school.

EDDY JEANS, MANAGER, SCHOOL FI NANCE AND FACI LI TI ES SECTI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, stated that
the fiscal note totals $1,179,000 and he expl ained that page
2 shows how the figure was derived. Galena has the capacity
to serve 100 kids, but 8 already qualify for boardi ng hone
stipends because they conme from the Pribilof Islands and
don’t have daily access to a secondary program on St.
George. He discussed the stipend and costs for the remaining
92 kids at Gal ena. M. Jeans pointed out that these three
prograns are 180-day, or full term prograns.

M. Jeans noted that all three prograns are currently
operating at capacity and the Departnent would not recruit
addi tional students from schools. He favored the bill’s

safety net of not penalizing districts for falling bel ow the
10-student ADM mi nimum while the pilot programis in place.

Co-Chair Harris asked if a school would close if its
enrol l ment dropped below ten students. M. Jeans replied
that the current Foundation Formula statute provides for
addi ng fewer than 10 students in a community to the snall est
comunity in the district because the revenue drops so |ow
that it forces the district to close the school

Co-Chair Harris asked if this was part of the Mlly Hootch
case. M. Jeans clarified that it was actually part of SB
36 in which the Legislature set a new threshold m ni mum of
10 students for a separate site.

Co-Chair Harris asked if the boarding schools such as M.
Edgecunbe are funded by the ADM like the other State
schools. M. Jeans affirned. Co-Chair Harris asked if the
boardi ng schools would receive funding from the Departnent
of Educati on. M. Jeans replied that they receive
educational dollars for the children enrolled in their
school .

Co-Chair Harris asked if a boarding school receives extra
noney for the residence. M. Jeans reiterated that it is
only in the instance of serving children who lack daily
access to a secondary school in their community.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Harris, M. Jeans

affirnmed that Nenana has a school with a current enroll nent
of 138 students, but the enrollment is declining. The space

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



could handle up to 400 students. M. Jeans said that Nenana
would not qualify for the boarding hone stipend under the
current regulation because it provides daily access to a
secondary school. He clarified that this bill would expand
the boarding home program for a five-year pilot, and allow
the Departnent to reinburse the boarding hone stipend for
all of the kids attendi ng the Nenana boardi ng school.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Harris, M. Jeans
clarified that the round-trip transportation costs and a
nmonthly stipend would be paid for the boarding schoo

students.

Co-Chair Harris questioned if the bill’s purpose is to gain
nore support for independent boarding schools or regiona
schools. M. Jeans did not regard it as the Departnent of
Education advocating for additional boardi ng school s;
instead, it would offer students choices that they currently
don’'t have in their own communities. Unlike M. Edgecunbe,
the State does not operate the schools in Bethel, Nenana or
Galena, which are operated by the independent school
districts.

Representative Chenault asked about the analysis by the
Nenana Student Living Center (copy on file). M. Jeans
explained that if it is a smaller school, the State pays a
hi gher instructional cost per <child, so the analysis
attenpts to show the savings to the State through the
foundation program of including these kids in a |I|arger
popul ati on.

In response to a question by Representative Chenault
regarding the figures used in the student allocation, M.
Jeans clarified that the Nenana nunber includes the boarding
school kids rather than the district that the kids cane
from

M. Jeans pointed out that the current program is in
regulation and this legislation would expand opportunities
for the kids. The Nenana program has an academ c focus,
while the Galena program is nore vocational in focus and
kids can gain certification and enter the workforce |ater
on.

Vice-Chair Meyer asked if boarding schools are simlar to
charter schools. M. Jeans stated that charter school
| egislation doesn’t allow for spending State noney on
boarding honme prograns. Vice-Chair Meyer asked if the
boardi ng schools are required to do exit exans and neet the
No Child Left Behind requirenments. M. Jeans affirned.

Representati ve Foster asked who currently pays the students’

transportation costs. Representative Coghill replied that
t he parents do.

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



RALPH LI NDQUI ST, DEAN OF STUDENTS, NENANA STUDENT LI VI NG
CENTER (NSLC), VIA TELECONFERENCE, NENANA, stated that
passage of HB 425 is essential to the survival of the NSLC
next year. The NSLC is processing over 150 applications for
the 30-35 beds that wll be avail abl e next year.

MORGAN DUGGERT, STUDENT, NENANA STUDENT LIVING CENTER, VIA
TELECONFERENCE, NENANA, stated that the Living Center has
i nproved the nunber and quality of classes that are offered.
She has received schol arship noney for coll ege.

AFTON BRI NKMAN, STUDENT, NENANA STUDENT LIVING CENTER, VIA
TELECONFERENCE, NENANA, explained that he noved from Eagle
to Nenana two years ago, which has inproved his life. He
will be graduating in Mwy. He expressed that he would not
have the range of class choices or the opportunities for
schol arshi ps back in Eagle.

M. Lindquist clarified that kids live at the NSLC but go to
school in Nenana.

JIM SM TH, SUPERI NTENDENT, GALENA CI TY SCHOCLS, stated that
he’d been in Galena five years and the school is seven years
old. He discussed the residential school program noting
that the boarding school provides 27 jobs for the community
with the potential for 100 kids, and it operated with 85
students this year. The scholastic program is successful
wth 72% of seniors passing all three portions of the
graduation test. Al aska Natives conprise ninety-four percent
of the student body. He felt that the strong point is the
provi sion of vocational training. He described the prograns,
whi ch are voluntary.

Representative Joul e commented on the evol ution of education
in the state, from Native and Non-Native after the eighth
grade to the current integration of schools. The State is
| ooking for solutions to its challenges in education, and he
anticipates an integrated K-14.

Co-Chair Harris referred to the large fiscal note, and
stated that the Co-Chair would like to hold the bill over.

Representative Joule asked if the Admnistration supports
the | egislation. M. Jeans replied that the State Board
hasn't reviewed it yet.

Representative Coghill spoke in support of the fiscal note,
and the inpact of the funding on “these three comunities
that have been carrying the weight.” He argued for the

significant college preparatory work that the three boarding
schools offer to students.

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



HB 425 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#hb452

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 452

An Act relating to licensing and regul ation of sport
fishing services operators and fishing guides; and
providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEI NZE expl ai ned that years ago she
was the owner of a fishing and guiding |odge on the Yentna
River and enployed four guides, which influenced her
introduction of this bill

Representative Heinze explained that currently Al aska | acks
a unified set of standards for sport fish guiding. This
makes it difficult to protect fish habitats and ensure the
maxi mum wutilization of Alaska' s resources. HB 452 is
intended to legitimze and protect the sport fishing
i ndustry by establishing professional standards and ensuring
accurate reporting of guiding activity throughout the state.

This legislation wll enhance public confidence in the
gui ded sport fishery and the data upon which nmanagenent
decisions are made. HB 452 will establish licensing and

reporting requirenents for businesses and gui des providing
sport fishing guide services in fresh and salt waters of
Al aska.

Representative Heinze pointed out that the bill establishes
two types of licenses: a sport fishing services operator
| icense and a fishing guide |Iicense, and establishes m ni nrum
requi renents and fees for obtaining each license. Under the
provisions of the bill, sport fishing service operators nust
meet | i censi ng, i nsur ance, and ot her requi renents
established by the Board of Fisheries. It requires that
fishing guides operate wunder the authority of a sport
fishing service operator license, either by holding that
license thenselves or by being enployed by, or under
contract with, a holder of a fishing service operator

license. The bill also requires that the licensed guide be
certified in first aid, have applicable U S. Coast uard
vessel licenses, and neet other requirenents adopted by the

Board of Fisheries.

HB 452 establishes reporting requirenments, including where
guided sport fishing activities are conducted and the
quantity of fish harvested. The bill ensures that sensitive
information will be kept confidential. Representative Heinze
concl uded by urging support of the bill

Co-Chair Harris asked if the Al aska Qutdoor Council supports
the bill. Representative Stoltze stated that he is the
| egi sl ative chairman of the Al aska Qutdoor Council, which
officially opposes the bill

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Co-Chair Harris asked why the Qutdoor Council doesn’t
support the bill. Representative Heinze did not know.
Representative Stoltze was unable to answer.

TAPE HFC 04 - 82, SIDE B

Representative Fate referred to the fiscal note, and asked
about the corpus of the Fish and Gane Fund.

KELLY HEPLER, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF SPORT FI SH, DEPARTNMENT
OF FISH AND GAME clarified that the fiscal note shows a
Departnent account funded primarily by |icense sales.

Representative Fate asked if the funds cone from the ADF&G
revolving loan fund. M. Hepler explained that the fees from
|l icensing of guides go directly into the account, which is a
uniquely different fund than the revolving loan fund for
commerci al fishernen.

Vice-Chair Meyer asked if the fees are the sanme for out of
state fishing guides. M. Hepler replied that about 25% of
the guides are non-residents. The Departnent of Law advi sed
that ADF&G should evaluate if its program adm nistration
costs are higher for non-resident than for resident guides.
He stated that the Departnent cannot verify higher costs,
but it can charge differentially under the sport-fishing
program and it requires the non-resident |icensed guides to
buy sport-fishing |licenses.

Representative Chenault asked if the 25% non-resident gui des
includes fly-in guides, and if they are required to have a
license. M. Hepler replied that they are required to
register if they are actively guiding.

Representative Chenault thought that fresh and saltwater
guides are currently required to be l|licensed and have CPR
certification. M. Hepler explained that Kenai has special

rules because it is under the Departnent of Natura

Resour ces, Division of Parks. The remainder of the
freshwater guides is not under the same provisions. He
explained that this bill consolidates other requirenents.

Representative Hawker referred to the |anguage on page 4,
line 3, “satisfies all additional requirenents adopted in
regulation by the Board of Fisheries” and asked what
additional requirenents are contenplated. M. Hepler said
there m ght be requirenents for zoning, such as on the Kenai
Ri ver, or harvest recording. The Legislature would limt the
Board of Fish to the enforcenment of the fishing regulations.
Represent ati ve Hawker expressed concern that the open-ended
| anguage woul d pl ace the Board of Fisheries in a regulation-
making role, with geographical differences wthin the state.

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



ROB BENTZ, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DVISION OF SPORT FISH
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME, explained that the intent of
the | anguage on line 3, page 4 is to request |ocations where
the guides intend to operate and to give them sone choi ces.

Co-Chair Harris asked if the fiscal note is adding four new
and one part-tinme positions. M. Hepler affirnmed, and the
positions would handle the admnistration of the |arge
nunber of |icenses and provide data summaries to the Board
of Fisheries.

Co-Chair Harris pointed out that this bill would expand the
scope and size of governnent. M. Hepler agreed that it
woul d. Co-Chair Harris asked about the increase in revenues
in the next few fiscal years. M. Hepler replied that the
Departnent prorated the nunber of guides over five years

Co-Chair Harris noted that it shows a decrease in costs from
FYO5 to FY0O6. M. Hepler replied that there are initial
capital startup costs and personnel increases. In response
to a question by Co-Chair Harris, M. Hepler explained that
the $10 thousand travel budget is for neetings with the
guides or in Juneau, and it is not in the current budget.

Representative Chenault asked in relation to the required
reports for guides whether fish tickets would be required
for fresh and saltwater fishing. M. Hepler said that the

intent was to keep it a sport fishing bill and not bring
commercial fishing into it. The question is whether the
| anguage is so broad that it needs to be anended. He

offered to discuss it with staff and suggest a commttee
substitute by the sponsor if the Departnent believes it
poses a problem

Representative Chenault comented that as a resource
managenent tool, he thought the Departnent would want to
track the real catch nunbers from guided and non-guided
fishing.

Representative Croft asked how sport-fishing guides are
regulated now. M. Hepler explained that when a simlar,
nore broadly witten bill did not pass the Legislature, the
ADF&G | ooked at revising regulatory |anguage outside of a
statute change. The ADF&G wanted to register guides and
inprove reporting in saltwater, which led to the saltwater

| ogbook. The guides are still required to have a business
| icense and to neet Coast Guard requirenents. He said that
the only difference in this bill is guide licensing to get

the freshwater report information.

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Hepler said that a |arge segnent of the guiding industry is
not saltwater-based. There is no direct reporting from the
Kenai, Susitna Basin, Copper Basin and Bristol Bay. He

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



explained that it is a Board of Fish violation to operate a
gui di ng busi ness without registering with the Departnent.

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Hepler said that the Departnment currently could only track
the saltwater guide activity in an area. The bill would
provide reporting in fresh water, set m sdeneanor fines for
not registering and reporting, and regulate the guiding
i ndustry statew de.

M. Bentz commented that the nunbers are currently
i naccurate and the bill would also require information on
where the activities are taking place.

Co-Chair Harris MWED to ADOCPT Anendnent #1. Co-Chair
W lianms objected.

M. Bentz explained that Arendnent #1 has two parts.
Amendnent #1 reads:

Page 6, line 16, followng “board.”: Insert “The
departnent and the board nmay adopt by regulation
requi renents for tinely subm ssion of reports required
under this section or under regul ations adopted by the
departnent or board.”

Page 6, line 31, followng “AS 16.40.270(e)”: Insert
“or who know ngly fails to conply with a requirenent
for timely submssion of reports required by a
regul ati on adopt ed under AS 16.40.280(b)”

M. Bentz read the |anguage on page 6, line 16. Co- Chair
Harris asked why it is needed. M. Bentz replied that when
Representative Heinze discussed the bill wth Legislative
Legal, M. Uernmohle recomended this |anguage for |egal
reasons even though it seens redundant.

M. Bentz explained that part two of Anendnent #1, page 6,
line 31 would change the reporting tine period of the
operator. Currently the | ogbook programis on a weekly basis
and he comented that an operator could be late for
circunstantial reasons. If this wording is not included on
line 31, one tardy report would fall under (a) which would
change the penalty from a violation to a Cass A
m sdeneanor, and would change the fine from a maxi num of
$500 to a maxi mum of $10,000 and one year in jail. He
stated that the Departnment supports these changes in the
anmendnent .

Co-Chair WIIlians renoved his objection. Amendnent #1 was
adopt ed.

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Representative Foster referred to the fourth paragraph of
the letter from the Kenai Ri ver  Prof essi onal Qui de
Association (copy on file) in which the Association states
that it already pays fees to the Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR). M. Hepler explained that to guide on the
Kenai River, which is a park, currently requires paynents to
DNR of $450 by residents and $1350 by non-residents. If it
is a concern of the guides, it could be brought before the
Legislature. M. Hepler thought fees mght be split between
the DNR and his own Departnent.

Co-Chair Harris MWED to report CSHB 452 (FIN) out of
Committee with individual recomendations and the attached
fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

CSHB 452(FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmmittee with individua
recommendations and two fiscal inpact notes.

#hb512

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 512

An Act establishing the Hydrogen Energy Partnership in
the Department of Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent;
requiring the comm ssioner of comunity and econom c
devel opment to seek public and private funding for the
partnership; providing for the contingent repeal of an
effective date; and providing for an effective date.

JAY HARDENBROOK, STAFF TO REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, testified
in support of HB 512. He observed that hydrogen does not
occur naturally on earth in its pure form and it is a neans
of containing energy rather than an energy source. The
potential sources for hydrogen are water, oil, natural gas,
coal, geothermal and wind, all of which occur in Al aska.

M . Hardenbrook noted that the bill provides a structure to
allow the State to accept grants from both private and
public sources. He referred to the fiscal note reflecting
$71,000 for the Departnent of Comunity & Econonic
Devel opnent .

Representative Stoltze asked if the |ocal energy task force
di scussed fuel <cells. M. Hardenbrook observed that the
State of Alaska has one of the |argest operational fuel

cells in the United States, located at the Anchorage
Airport. He noted that it is relatively cost effective given
the high costs for fuel oil, natural gas and electricity.

Alaska is unique in the hydrogen market because its power
costs are high and it has a great supply of potential energy
for hydrogen. He concluded that by establishing this
partnership, Al aska could be a test project for the rest of
the U S

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



In response to a question by Representative Hawker, M.
Har denbr ook explained that if there are not sufficient funds
t hrough grants the partnership provision would be renoved.

Representative Hawker asked the tinme that is needed to
secure funding. M. Hardenbrook replied that the partnership
woul d be dissolved in 2009. He felt that there would be
sufficient grants to continue beyond next year.

CARYL MCCONKI E, TOURI SM DEVELOPMENT, DIVISION OF TRADE AND
DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNI TY & ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

explained that the fiscal note would only support the first
year while the funding is being secured. The Departnent
would work with the University of Alaska, which has
conpl eted sone research, and with the Energy Task Force and
the Energy Authority.

Representati ve Hawker noted the repealer clause of 2009 to
secure stand-al one funding, and he asked if the State would
be required to continue support if the funding is
i nsufficient. Ms. McConki e explained the Departnent’s
assunption that if funding were not available, the project
woul d be di sconti nued.

Representative Fate questioned if the viability of the
partnershi ps had been researched. M. Hardenbrook noted that
California has been successful wth fewer resources and
| ower energy costs than Al aska. The concl usion was reached
that the State of Al aska woul d be successf ul

Representative Fate questioned if “the cart is before the
horse” since the gas pipeline is not yet a reality.
Har denbr ook responded that hydrogen coul d be nade from ot her
technol ogi es, including hydrogen from coal. Al aska has nore
coal reserves than the rest of the United States conbi ned.

Representative Fate acknow edged that the technol ogy exists
but pointed out that it is currently expensive.

Representative Hawker questioned what would happen if
out si de revenue sources fail. M. Hardenbrook noted that the
sunsets are the repealers in Section 6 that would allow
reeval uation by the Legislature in 2009.

Represent ati ve Hawker suggested that additional |anguage be
used to clarify what would happen to the agency if outside
funding is not secured or ceases to be available. M.
Har denbr ook deferred to the bill drafter.

Representative Croft referred to Section 5, which would
prevent the provisions to take effect w thout funding. He
pointed out that if the funding never takes place, the
provi sions would be repealed in 2009.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Har denbr ook noted that hydrogen is nore stable than gasoline
and can be transported by pipeline or tanker, or |iquefied.
Al aska has an abundance of zeolites [secondary m nerals]
with a honeyconb structure used to trap hydrogen.

In response to a question by Representative Hawker, Ms.
McConki e stated that the Departnent has not taken a position
on the bill

ERIC YOULD, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA POAER ASSOCI ATI ON
(APA), stated that he represents the electric wutility
industry in Alaska. He spoke in support of the |egislation
and stressed that new energy resources are needed. Hydrogen
can be produced through fossil fuels or water.

TAPE HFC 04 - 83, Side A

M. Yould noted that there has not been sufficient economc
incentive to further the technology. The State of Al aska
possesses a nunber of renewable resources in large
quantities that represent an indigenous resource that could
be devel oped. While hydrogen would not be developed in the
near future, the fuel cel | i ndustry is an energent
technol ogy. He noted that hydrogen could also be burned in
internal conbustion engines. He concluded that the APA
supports the bill. If the partnership were not put in
place, it would fall to the individual interests to back the
t echnol ogy.

M. Youl d recomended m nor changes to the bill. On page 2,
lines 2-3, after “including sufficient geothermal energy” he
suggest ed addi ng “hydropower, tidal power, wind and other.”
Around line 21, page 2, he would include “the electric
utility industry,” which would have vested interest in
seei ng the technol ogy nove forward. He noted that the Al aska
Energy Task Force has also taken a strong stand in support
of hydrogen technol ogy.

Representative Fate asked if M. Yould had projected when
the hydrogen industry would Dbenefit the electrical
conpanies. M. Yould replied that hydrogen technol ogy is not
on the imediate horizon and it has been energing for 30
years. Fuel <cells are the technology of the future and
hydrogen will fuel the world technology in the distant
future. He provided statistics, and discussed Cook Inlet
reserves.

Representati ve Hawker questioned if the industry could fund
a fellowship grant to the University to provide the needed
| eadership. M. Yould thought the various groups, including
the task force, could do it in partnership.

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Represent ati ve Hawker commented that he would |i ke to change
Fiscal Note #2 to reflect indeterm nate nunbers. He asked if
the Departnent would consider changing the source from the
CGeneral Fund to Recei pt supported services.

Representati ve Hawker proposed a conceptual anmendnent to
change Fiscal Note #2, DCED dated 2/24/04 to reflect
i ndeterm nate nunbers for FY06, FY07, FY08 and FY09. He
al so proposed that the funding source for FY 05 be under
recei pt-supported services, wth funding contingent on
finding third-party funding.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer OBJECTED for purposes of discussion.

Ms. McKonki e agreed that she would work with the Departnent
to revise the fiscal note as proposed by Representative
Hawker. She stated that it would require finding outside
funding for the first year. An additional staff position to
secure that funding woul d be needed.

Representati ve Hawker comrented that the fiscal note | acks
clarity regarding future needs. He doubted that soliciting
industry would require a lot of effort on the Departnent’s

part. Ms. MKonkie replied that it wasn't likely the
program could be up and running in a year’s tine, wth the
current staff “maxed out” in the existing grant prograns.

She expressed that the Departnment would need guaranteed
first year funding in the current fiscal note.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer asked what woul d happen to the staff if the
program were di scontinued after the first year. M. MKonkie
said that sonme prograns are only funded for a year at a
tinme. The proposed program would require an expertise not
currently in the Departnent, and it nust at |east estimte a
portion of the staff tine. In response to a question by
Vice-Chair Meyer, M. MKonkie explained that recruitnent
woul d be tied to a person’s experience in industry.

Regar di ng extended year funding, Ms. MKonkie stated that if
the funding were there, the activities would continue. The
Departnment did not estinmate beyond the first year.

Representative Hawker reiterated doubt that the current
Department staff in various prograns would not have tinme to
solicit public funding. Ms. MKonkie explained that there is
expertise in those areas, but this fiscal note reflects the
DCED inplenenting the bill. Representative Hawker expressed
hesitation in creating additional staffing when the
Legislature is on verge of stabilizing fiscal policies.

Vice-Chair Meyer renoved his objection to the conceptual
anendnent .

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Representati ve Hawker explained that FY06, FY0O7, FY08 and
FYOQ are really indetermnate nunbers rather than zero,
because of potential federal receipts. Rat her than pure
General Fund in 2005, he proposed to set it up as receipt-
supported services so that it is not a General Fund
appropri ation.

Representati ve Fate asked Representative Hawker if his first
conceptual anmendnent also included third party funding.
Represent ati ve Hawker affirned.

Representative Chenault suggested allowng the DCED to
provide a revised fiscal note and a response to the
Comm ttee’s concerns.

Represent ati ve Hawker w thdrew his anendnent.

HB 512 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#hjr 46

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 46

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska relating to the principal of the Al aska
permanent fund; limting appropriations fromthe Al aska
permanent fund to amounts equal to that part of the
mar ket value of the fund that exceeds the principal
based on an averaged percent of the fund market val ue.

Co-Chair Harris summarized that in addition to the Percent
of Market Value (POW) provision, the legislation would
incorporate in a constitutional anendnent the value of
$22, 988, 000, 000 pl us deposits nade between June 30, 2003 and
the date of the principal is determ ned.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, CO-CHAIR WLLIAMS, noted that the
intent is to define principal. Any deposits after June 30,
2003 will increase the principal. The principal would be
protected and could not be appropriated. Only the val ue of
the fund that exceeds the principal anmount could be
appropriated. He noted that the principal anmount as of
February 29, 2004, was $23, 195, 500, 500.

Co-Chair Harris questioned if the Earnings Reserve Account
woul d remai n.

BOB BARTHOLOVEW CHI EF OPERATI NG OFFI CER, ALASKA PERMANENT
FUND CORPORATI QN, DEPARTNMENT CF REVENUE, provi ded
information relating to the legislation. He clarified that
there would be an account that would record the value in
excess of principal. He did not know what the account would
be called. Incone or value from investnents earned above
princi pal would be accounted for.

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Co-Chair Harris noted that 5 percent of the earnings would
be the maxi num anount that could be appropriated in any one
year. M. Barthol omew explained that there would be a two-
step process: calculate based on the total value of the Fund
a five percent payout; and determne if there is enough in
the account to nmke the appropriation. The payout would be
reduced if there were insufficient funds to an anmount above
pri nci pal .

In response to a question by Vice-Chair Myer, M.
Bart hol omew observed that the Al aska Pernanent Fund
Corporation Board had not net on the new proposal, but
observed that it would neet their nunber one priority to
establish a spending limt. A proposal that retains
principal would be a workable solution. Short-term drops in
the stock nmarket <could reduce what is available for
spending, which would renove the benefit of a stable,
predi ct abl e payout anount.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer observed that if the average earnings were
only 2 percent, there would only be 1 percent for governnent
and 1 percent for dividends. He noted that people want at
| east $1,000. He questioned if the pure POW nethod woul d
provi de the safest nmanner to insure a $1,000 dividend. M.
Bart hol omew agreed and noted that [the constitutiona
protection of the principal] adds the risk of less than a
full payout during a short-term down market.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer asked how many years the Fund has been
bel ow the 5% threshold in earnings. M. Barthol onew observed
that the bal ance in the account has been | ess than 5 percent
a couple of tinmes “intra-year” or during the year. However,
there was a rally during 2003, the year in which they were
nost at risk, and funds were available to pay the 5% He
observed that, last year, the amount in the available
spendi ng account of the Permanent Fund grew by $3.5 billion,
which is nore than enough to fund a 5 percent payout.

Vice-Chair Meyer supported the “pure” Percent of Market
Val ue nethod; at tines earning 12-15% so he believes in | ong
run, always would get average 8% He thought this nethod
woul d be “separate buckets” and would be easier to explain
to the voters.

M. Barthol onew observed that the Permanent Fund is invested
as one fund. It is not separated into buckets of principle
and the value above principal. There is one pool of noney,
which is only treated differently for accounting purposes.
He observed that under HIR 26, it would be accounted and
i nvested as one fund.

Representative Croft asked re the new | anguage on page 1,

lines 13-15 through line 2, page 2 and asked if envision it
would rise over tine. M. Bartholonmew, said under this

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



proposal it would be accounted for wunder what is not
principal, and it is not envisioned to appropriate it for
i nflation-proofing whi |l e not | osi ng t hat opti on.
Appropriations fromany source would go into the principal

Representative Croft asked what would happen to the 3
per cent used for inflation proofing; would it be
appropriated each tine. M. Barthol omew understood that the
3 percent, which would be retained over tine to offset
inflation, would be kept in the Permanent Fund. Under the
proposal it would be accounted for in the account that is
not principle. There is no intent to annually appropriate a
portion of this to principal, but the option of a special
appropriation would remain. Any appropriation from any
source or an appropriation of earnings within the Fund woul d
be principal.

Representative Croft asked if a deposit to the Fund woul d be
an appropriation nmade to the principal. M . Eckl und
expl ained that the constitutional 25 percent royalties occur
automatically under subsection (1). Subsection (2) applies
to any other appropriation to principal. Since June 30, 2003
there have been appropriations to the principal for
inflation proofing. Any appropriation, along with the 25
percent automatic deposits will help the Fund grow

M. Barthol onew observed that the 25 percent automatic
deposits are between $200 and $400 million. The FY04 fiscal
year is anticipated to be about $350 million. Last year’s
appropriation under the current |aw was $400 nmillion.

MR. Ecklund explained that the payout is limted to five
percent of the 5-year average of the earnings. Any accruing
of profits or value that rises would be in excess of
principal. The spending appropriation Iimt would still be
up to 5% A future legislature could put noney back into
the principal.

Representative Croft asked if the January 30, 2004 princi pal

anount was with realized gain. M. Barthol onew clarified
that it is wthout both the realized and unrealized gains.
Under the proposal, both the realized and wunrealized

earnings would start in the account that is not principal.

Representative Croft asked if there was an opinion by
Attorney General Renkes that the realized gains should be
included in the principal anbunt. M. Barthol onew affirned,
result of that opinion was the realized earnings went into
available to spend account and the wunrealized gains and
| osses were attributed to the principal. The proposal would
go back to the definition used prior to the Attorney
Ceneral’s opinion, which placed all earnings accounted for
outside of that principal.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Co-Chair Harris MOVED to report HIR 46 out of Committee with
the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was so ordered.

HIR 46 was REPORTED out of Conmttee wth individual
recommendations and with two fiscal inpact notes.

#hjra7

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 47

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska relating to the principal of the Al aska
permanent fund; limting appropriations fromthe Al aska
permanent fund to amounts equal to that part of the
mar ket value of the fund that exceeds the principal
based on an averaged percent of the fund market val ue;
and permtting appropriations from the permanent fund
only for costs of admnistering the fund, a program of
di vidend paynents for state residents, and public
educat i on.

TAPE HFC 04 - 83, Side B

Co-Chair WIllians explained that HIR 47 includes a soft
enshri nenent.

Pete Ecklund explained that the first portion of HIR 47 is
the sanme as HIR 46. He noted that HIR 47 has a purposes
section not included in HIR 46. Co-Chair WIIlianms observed
that the legislation was based on work by Senator
Therriault, but that he would prefer not to have a purposes
section. He felt that the legislature would be giving up the
| egi sl ature’ s power of appropriation and could be chall enged
in court.

M. Ecklund observed that sone of the details would be
included in a statutory bill (HB 553).

Representative Hawker questioned if community dividends
woul d be included. M. Ecklund could not respond.

Representative Hawker stated that he would continue to
pursue clarification on the inclusion of community
di vi dends.

Co-Chair Harris MOVED to report HIR 47 out of Committee with
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

Representative Croft OBJECTED. He spoke in opposition to the
| egi slation. He pointed out that the |egislation would not
i npl enent POW and woul d not offer protections to dividends
or guarantee additional noney for public education. He
questioned what the | egislation would buy.

House Fi nance Committee 18 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Representative Croft W THDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Representative Fate expressed his concern but noted that he
woul d allow the bill to nove.

Represent ati ve Hawker acknow edged concerns, but felt that
the bill should be forwarded.

Vice-Chair Meyer stated that he did not support the
| egi slation but added that he would also support its
novenent .

Representative Joule questioned if it is possible to see
each proposal conpared.

HIR 47 was REPORTED out of Conmttee wth individual
recommendations and with two fiscal inpact notes.

#hb553

HOUSE BILL NO 553

An Act relating to investnents of the Al aska pernmanent
fund and to the income of and appropriations fromthe
Al aska permanent fund and maki ng conform ng anendnents;
relating to the determnation of net income of the
nment al health trust fund; and providing for an
effective date.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF TO REPRESENTATIVE WLLIAMS, observed
that the legislation is simlar to HB 298, which was
previously noved from Committee. He discussed differences
bet ween HB 298 and HB 553. He observed that Section 3 of HB
553 directs the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation to use the
prudent-investor rule while investing that value of the Fund
in excess of principal.

BOB BARTHOLOVEW CHI EF OPERATI NG OFFI CER, ALASKA PERMANENT
FUND CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, further explained
that statutory directions regarding how noney in excess of
principal is invested would be repealed. The statutory |ist
of allowed investnents would apply. The authority of how to
i nvest the bal ance in excess of principal is currently in AS
37.13.145, which is being repealed. A portion of AS
37.13.145 would be brought into HB 553: (a) This section
applies to investnment of fund principal and all other
anounts in the fund

M. Ecklund noted that the Commttee m ght want to change
“general fund” to “public education” on |ine 20, page 3. He
further explained that the cost of operating the Corporation
woul d before the split occurred. Then not nore than 50
percent could be to the CGeneral Fund [subsequently anmended
by the Committee to read: “public education”] and not nore
than 50 percent could be appropriated for dividends.

House Fi nance Committee 19 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



Section 5 is the sane as HB 298.

M. Ecklund discussed page 4, lines 1 and 2. He noted that
the section is basically the sanme as | anguage contained in
HB 298, with the exception of the: The revenue generated by
the fund’s investnents nust be identified as the source of
the operating budget of the corporation and shall be
included in the state's operating budget under AS 37.07.

The only other difference from HB 298 was on page 5:
di scl ose the anobunt of each dividend attributable to [INCOVE
EARNED BY THE PERMANENT FUND FROM appropriations to the
per manent fund.

Representative Hawker MOVED to delete “general fund” and
insert “public education” on line 20, page 3, in order to
conform to HB 298. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

M. Ecklund noted that the effective date mght need to be
changed to June 30, 2005. Co-Chair WIllians noted that it
coul d be changed on the House Floor if necessary.

Co-Chair Harris MOVED to report HB 553 out of Committee with
the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was so ordered.

CSHB 553(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with individua
recommendati ons and no fiscal inpact notes.

#hb452

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 452

An Act relating to licensing and regulation of sport
fishing services operators and fishing guides; and
providing for an effective date.

DON JOHNSON, GUIDE, SOLDOTNA, spoke against HB 452. He
stated he has expressed his objection to the I|egislation
with the sponsor. He observed that had provided witten
t esti nony. He felt that the legislation would place
unnecessary restrictions. He mintained that <creating
simlarly situated subclasses within the general sport fish

class would create illegal exclusive fishery rights. He
clainmed that the legislation attenpts to grant non-guided
anglers exclusive fishing rights over guided anglers. He

mai ntained that it is unconstitutional to create regul ations
designed to establish exclusive fishery rights between
simlarly situated residents.

Representative Chenault asked for further docunentation
regardi ng groups opposing the | egislation.

House Fi nance Committee 20 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



M. Johnson further argued against the Ilegislation and
mai ntai ned that its passage would end in litigation.

HB 425 was heard and HELD in Committee for further

consi der ati on.
#
ADJ QURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:47 PM

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 14/ 04 1:55 PM



